
 

 

 
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE SUMMONS 
 
C.Hanagan 
Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
The Pavilions 
Cambrian Park 
Clydach Vale CF40 2XX 
 
Meeting Contact: Tracy Watson - Senior Democratic & Scrutiny Officer  (07747 
485567)  
 
YOU ARE SUMMONED to a hybrid meeting of the EDUCATION AND INCLUSION 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on THURSDAY, 15TH SEPTEMBER, 2022 at 
5.00 PM. 
 
Non Committee Members and Members of the public may request the facility to 
address the Committee at their meetings on the business listed although facilitation 
of this request is at the discretion of the Chair. It is kindly asked that such notification 
is made to Democratic Services by Tuesday, 13 September 2022 on the contact 
details listed above, including stipulating whether the address will be in Welsh or 
English. 

 
AGENDA Page 

No’s 
SCRUTINY RESEARCH 
 

A scrutiny research facility is available within the Council Business 
Unit to support Members’ scrutiny responsibilities and their roles as 
Elected Members.  Such research strengthens Scrutiny Committee 
work programmes to ensure outcome-based topics are identified. For 
any scrutiny research requirements please contact 
scrutiny@rctcbc.gov.uk 

 

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 To receive disclosures of personal interest from Members in accordance 
with the Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

1. Members are requested to identify the item number and subject 
matter that their interest relates to and signify the nature of the 
personal interest: and 

 

mailto:scrutiny@rctcbc.gov.uk


 

 

 
2. Where Members withdraw from a meeting as a consequence of 

the disclosure of a prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chairman when they leave. 

   

REPORTS OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATIONS  

 

   

2. CONSULTATION LINKS   

 Information is provided in respect of relevant consultations for 
consideration by the Committee. 

 

   

3. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2022-23 AND TERMS OF 
REFERENCE  

 

 To consider and agree the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme for 2022-23 and to acknowledge the Terms of 
Reference for this Committee, as approved by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 

  5 - 18 

OFFICER'S REPORTS   

   

4. YOUTH ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE: 
OVERVIEW OF ADDITIONAL FUNDING 2020 - 2022  

 

 To provide an overview of the additional support the Youth Engagement 
and Participation Service has offered young people as a result of the 
Council’s additional investment since 2020. 

 

  19 - 28 

5. CHAIR'S REVIEW AND CLOSE   

 To reflect on the meeting and actions to be taken forward.  

   

6. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To consider any items, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, is of the opinion should be considered at the meeting as 
a matter of urgency. 

 

   
Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication 
 
Circulation:- 
 
The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee 
(County Borough Councillor S Evans and County Borough Councillor K Webb 
respectively) 
 
 

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Scrutiny/InformationReports/ConsultationInformation/ConsultationInformation.aspx


 

 

 
County Borough Councillors:  
 
Councillor M Ashford, Councillor R Bevan, Councillor J Brencher, Councillor J Cook, 
Councillor J Elliott, Councillor S Hickman, Councillor C Lisles, 
Councillor M Maohoub, Councillor C Preedy, Councillor J Smith, Councillor J Turner 
and Councillor D Wood 
 
Co-Opted Members:- 
 
Mr Paul Booth, Voting Diocesan Authorities Representative 
Mr M Cleverley 
Ms A Jones, Representing UNITE 
Mrs C Jones, Representing the National Union of Teachers and Teachers’ Panel 
Mr C Jones, Representing GMB 
Mrs R Lydon, Voting Elected Parent / Governor Representative 
Mr L Patterson, Voting Elected Parent / Governor Representative 
Mr D Price, Representing UNISON 
Mr M Veale, Voting Elected Parent / Governor Representative 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

15th SEPTEMBER 2022 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                      

WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE 2022/23 MUNICIPAL YEAR 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek Member’s comment and approval on the 

draft Work Programme of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee for 

the 2022/23 Municipal Year, attached as Appendix A.  

 

1.2. To acknowledge the Terms of Reference for this Committee, as approved by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on the 4th July 2022, attached as 

Appendix B.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

It is recommended that Members of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny 

Committee: 

2.1. Agree on issues for inclusion on the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny 

Committee’s Work Programme for the 2022/23 Municipal Year (as set out in 

Appendix 1) with appropriate amendments as necessary;  

 

2.2. Request that the Service Director Democratic Services & Communications 

notifies the appropriate Cabinet Member and responsible Officer, of the matters 

identified for pre-scrutiny in advance of Cabinet consideration;  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=401&MId=50004189&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

2.3. Agree that the Work Programme be reviewed at regular intervals to ensure the 

items identified for inclusion are relevant and that any additional referrals are 

incorporated; and 

 

2.4. Consider and determine any other matter that Members may wish to scrutinise 

over this period. 

  

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1. There is a requirement to devise and publish a Work Programme for each of the 

Council’s Scrutiny Committees as set out in Part 4 of the Constitution (Overview 

& Scrutiny Procedure Rules). The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is responsible 

for ensuring that there is no duplication of work across the thematic scrutiny 

committees. 

 

3.2. In consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Education and Inclusion 

Scrutiny Committee together with appropriate Council Officers, and the relevant 

Cabinet Members, through the one-to-one engagement session, an initial list of 

work topics for the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee has been 

produced and is attached at Appendix A. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 

4.1. As agreed in the report to the Council’s AGM on 25th May 2022 the Council’s 

Scrutiny Structure has been revised to respond to areas of improvement 

identified since the previous scrutiny arrangements put in place in 2019.   

 

4.2. The new arrangements will ensure the Council’s scrutiny arrangements are well-

placed to respond to the new requirements of the Local Government & Elections 

(Wales) Act 2021. This includes responding to the revised responsibilities for the  

Governance & Audit Committee. 

 

4.3. The work programme should reflect the committee's aims and objectives as well 

as add value to the work of the Council.  It is up to the Committee to agree the 

items for inclusion in its work programme, but ideas are brought together from a 

number of sources, to assist members in their choices. It is important that all 

Members have the opportunity to put forward items for consideration.  

 

4.4. There are a number of areas which have been taken into account when 

developing the Draft Work Programme: 

 

➢ The work programme represents a mixed selection of topics; 

Page 6

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34960/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=50004126&LLL=0
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=149&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=149&LLL=0


➢ It meets deadlines in relation to other Council meetings and those of external 

partners; 

➢ Consideration as to whether the topic duplicates review activity which is taking 

place elsewhere; and 

➢ Flexibility - to ensure that new topics can be factored in and changes 

accounted for. 

 

5. SCRUTINY AREAS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 

5.1. To support effective scrutiny, challenge and policy development members are 

advised to determine matters for consideration within the committees work 

programme from a range of perspectives. These should include: 

 

- Pre scrutiny of the identified key decisions proposed for Cabinet 

consideration over the next municipal year 

- The delivery of services against the proposed of objectives of decisions 

- Matters of strategic significance to the Council, partners and stakeholders 

- The development of policy of recommendation for consideration by the 

Cabinet.  

 

5.2. To promote public participation in scrutiny, members are advised to provide 

sufficient capacity within the work programme to accommodate matters identified 

for scrutiny by the public. A Public Participation Strategy, which will provide a 

mechanism for stronger participation by the public and residents, will shortly be 

presented for member consideration, in-line with the new requirements contained 

with the Local Government & Elections Act (Wales) (2021).  

 

5.3. Members are also advised to focus their scrutiny activities in areas, where 

maximum value can be achieved and to ensure that sufficient capacity is made 

available to respond to business yet identified by Cabinet for consideration and 

the Council’s response to national policy drivers.  

 

5.4. Most importantly Members are advised to maintain focus, when planning their 

committee work programme, to enable the approach level of questioning and 

challenge to take place.  

 

5.5. Members are also advised to consider what, if any, additional focused 

development and training requirements, they might have in order to assist in 

ensuring Scrutiny is providing good governance to the Council. Members are 

advised to contact the Chair to discuss. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

    

6.1. An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of the report 

are for information purposes only and further analysis of the Work Programme 

will be needed if the recommendations are to be taken forward. 

 

7. CONSULTATION 

 
7.1. The draft Work Programme has been compiled in discussion with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee in consultation 

with Council Officers as well as the relevant Cabinet Member. 

 

7.2. This Committee will act as consultees where matters are considered under the 

Welsh Government School Organisation Code.  In addition, Members will also 

have the opportunity to pre-scrutinise Education items that are not within the 

remit of the School Organisation Code. 

 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1. There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS AND LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

 
9.1. The report has been prepared in accordance with paragraph Part 4 of the 

Constitution (Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules). 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972  

 
AS AMENDED BY 

 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

 
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 
15th SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
2022/23 
 
APPENDIX B 
 
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

Education and Inclusion  
Draft Forward Work Programme 2022- 23 

Date/Time Overarching Item Officer 
 

Cabinet Member Invited/ In 
attendance 

Scrutiny 
Focus/Challenge 

15 September 2022 Education and 
Inclusion Draft 
Work Programme 
2022-23 including 
Terms of 
Reference 

 
 

Christian Hanagan, 
Service Director 
Democratic Services & 
Communications 

 Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion 
Services 
 

For Members to consider 
the work programme for 
the 2022/2023 Municipal 
year and acknowledge 
the Terms of Reference. 

Youth Engagement 
and Participation 
Service: Overview 
of Additional 
Funding 2020 - 
2022 
 

Paul Mee, Group 
Director, Community 
and Children’s Services 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Zoe Lancelott, Head 
of Community 
Wellbeing and 
Resilience 
 
Bedwyr Harries, 
Youth Services 
Manager 

To provide an overview 
of the additional support 
the Youth Engagement 
and Participation Service 
has offered young 
people as a result of the 
Council’s additional 
investment since 2020. 
 

27 October 2022 Proposal to 
improve the 
Education 
provision for a new 
special school in 
RCT 
 

Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion Services 
 
Andrea Richards, 
Service Director for 21st 
Century Schools 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services 

Pre – Scrutiny - to 
Scrutinise and make any 
recommendations to the 
report before presenting 
to Cabinet. 

 

P
age 11



Date/Time Overarching Item Officer 
 

Cabinet Member Invited/ In 
attendance 

Scrutiny 
Focus/Challenge 

Update on the 
Implementation of 
the Additional 
Learning Needs 
and Education 
Tribunal Act in 
RCT  
 

Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion 
Services 
 

Pre – Scrutiny - to 
Scrutinise and make any 
recommendations to the 
report before presenting 
to Cabinet. 
 

Framework for 
evaluation, 
improvement and 
accountability  
 

Clara Seery, MD CSC Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Andrew Williams CSC To provide a 
presentation to elected 
members on the new 
education, improvement 
and accountability 
framework 
 

The 
Implementation of 
Curriculum for 
Wales in RCT 
Schools – 
readiness and 
support for 
schools  

Natalie Gould, 
Assistant Director CSC 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Tim Britton, Head of 
Primary Achievement 

To provide an overview 
of schools’ readiness for 
the CfW and evidence 
for this; support provided 
by CSC; and summary of 
best practice in RCT, 
including an update from 
a lead school if possible.  
 

29 November 2022 CfW and school 
transitions from 
the primary to 
secondary sector 

 

Tim Britton, Head of 
Primary Achievement 
 
Sarah Corcoran, Head 
of Wellbeing and 
Achievement  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion 
Services 
 
Steve Davies, 
Principal Improvement 
Partner 
 

To provide an overview 
on the impact of CfW 
implementation on 
school transitions, 
particularly when 
learners transition to 
secondary schools that 
have deferred CfW 
implementation until 
2023.  

P
age 12



Date/Time Overarching Item Officer 
 

Cabinet Member Invited/ In 
attendance 

Scrutiny 
Focus/Challenge 

Andy Williams, 
Secondary Principal 
Improvement Partner  
 

Community 
Schools 

Dan Williams, Head 
AWS 
 
Andrea Richard, Head 
of 21st Century Schools 
and  
Transformation  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Hayley Jacobs, 
Community Schools 
Officer 
 
Lisa Howell,  
21st Century Schools 
Manager 
 

To provide an overview 
of current practice in 
RCT and areas for 
potential further 
development. 
  

Elective Home 
Education Update  
 

Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

 To provide an overview 
of trend data in relation 
to EHE and the support 
provided for families. 
  

19 January 2023 Update on the 
Universal Roll Out 
of free school 
Meals 

Andrea Richards, 
Service Director for 21st 
Century Schools 
 
Lisa Kidner, Head of 
Catering Services 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion 
Services 
 
Karen Spence, 
Principal Officer - 
(Business, Training, 
Quality Assurance & 
Risk) 
 

An update on the roll out 
of the offer across the 
County Borough, 
including timescales. 

Annual progress 
report from CSC 

Clara Seery, Managing 
Director for CSC 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Andrew Williams,  
Deputy MD CSC 
 
Steve Davies, 
Principal Improvement 
Partner 
 

To provide an overview 
of the annual report from 
CSC. 

P
age 13



Date/Time Overarching Item Officer 
 

Cabinet Member Invited/ In 
attendance 

Scrutiny 
Focus/Challenge 

Andy Williams, 
Secondary Principal 
Improvement Partner   
 

Sustainable 
Communities for 
Learning – Band B 
Update 
 

Andrea Richards, 
Service Director for 21st 
Century Schools 
 
Lisa Howells, 21st 
Century Schools 
Manager 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Nicola Goodman, 
Lead for Strategic 
Planning and MIM 

To Provide and update 
on Band B. 

16 February 2023 Education  
Workforce 
Development 
 

Richard Evans, Director 
for HR 
 
Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion Services 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Tim Britton, Head of 
Primary Achievement 
 
Sarah Corcoran, 
Head of Secondary 
Achievement  

To provide an update on 
the education workforce 
in our schools, including 
staff turnover, staff 
vacancies, staff sickness 
and supply usage, and 
succession plans.  
 

WESP Update 
 
 

Gaynor Davies, 
Education and 
Inclusion Services 
Director 
 
Lisa Howell, 21st 
Century Schools 
Manager 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Hannah Bebb, 
Graduate Officer  
 
Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services 
 
Andrea Richards, 
Service Director for 
21st Century Schools  
 

To provide an update on 
the signed off WESP and 
the delivery plan for 
implementation.  

Attendance Data 
 
 

Daniel Williams, Head 
of Attendance and 
Wellbeing 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 
 

Sarah Corcoran, 
Head of Achievement 
and Wellbeing 

To provide an update on 
current attendance data. 

P
age 14



Date/Time Overarching Item Officer 
 

Cabinet Member Invited/ In 
attendance 

Scrutiny 
Focus/Challenge 

30 March 2023 School based 
Counselling 
 

Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Sarah Corcoran, 
Head of Achievement 
and Wellbeing 
 

To provide an update on 
school counselling data 
for 2021/22 academic 
year.  

Exclusions 
 

Ceri Jones, Head of 
Inclusion Services  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

 To provide an update on 
school counselling data 
for 2021/22 academic 
year. 
 

School Admissions Catrin Edwards, Head 
of Service 
Transformation  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 
 

 To provide a summary of 
the annual school 
admissions process. 

Post 16 curriculum 
offer in RCT  

Sarah Corcoran, Head 
of Achievement and 
Wellbeing  
 
Martyn Silezin, 14-19 
Officer  

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Youth 
Participation & Welsh 
Language 

Gaynor Davies, 
Director for Education 
and Inclusion 
Services 
 
 

To provide an overview 
of the post 16 curriculum 
offer across RCT 
secondary schools. 

 

Unallocated 
 

• Update on proposals to strengthen the continuum of school provision for pupils with social, emotional and 
behavioural difficulties (SEBD) (before it goes to Cabinet) 
 

• WG consultation around changing term times and the change in the school year (as and when this comes out) 
 

• YOS Annual Report (previous report to scrutiny) 
 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee 
 

Chair & Vice Chair Corporate Plan & Priorities Remit Cabinet Member(s) Lead Officer(s) 
 

 
Chair:  
Cllr Sera Evans  
 
Vice Chair:  
Cllr Karen Webb 
 
 

 
Holding the Executive to 
account for its performance 
across all the Council’s 
priority areas:- 
 
1. Ensuring People: are 
independent, healthy and 
successful; 
 
2. Creating Places: where 
people are proud to live, work 
and play; 
 
3. Enabling Prosperity: 
creating the opportunity for 
people and businesses to: be 
innovative; be entrepreneurial; 
and fulfil their potential and 
prosper. 

Improving services for children 
and young people and 
ensuring the needs of children 
are considered in everything 
we do 

Ensuring we have good 
schools so all children have 
access to a great education 
 
The Council's Corporate Plan 
2020 - 2024 

 
• Schools 

• Schools achievement / effectiveness / 

Improvement 

• 21st Century Schools 

• School Catering Services 

• Schools Organisation 

• School Support Services 

• Education Welfare & Inclusion 

• Early Years Education including Flying Start 

• Youth Engagement and Participation Service 

• Special Educational Needs 

• Central South Consortium 

 

 
• Cabinet Member for 

Education, Youth 
Participation, & 
Welsh Language 
 

• (Any other Cabinet 
Member as and 
when required) 

 
• Director of 

Education & 
Inclusion Services 
 

• (Any other lead 
officer as and 
when required) 

 

P
age 17

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/CorporatePlan2020/CorporatePlan2020ENGFINAL.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/CorporatePlan2020/CorporatePlan2020ENGFINAL.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23 

 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

15th SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

YOUTH ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE: 

OVERVIEW OF ADDITIONAL FUNDING 2020 - 2022 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES  

 

Author: Zoe Lancelott, Head of Community Wellbeing and Resilience  

Email: Zoe.V.Lancelott@rctcbc.gov.uk 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with an overview of 

the additional support the Youth Engagement and Participation Service 
has offered young people as a result of the Council’s additional 
investment since 2020. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1 Scrutinise and comment on the information contained within this report.  
 
2.2 Consider whether they wish to scrutinise in further depth, matters 

contained in this report. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To provide Members of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny 

Committee with an update on the service developments for the Youth 
Engagement and Participation Service over the past two years that 
have been supported by the Council additional investment the service 
has received.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Zoe.V.Lancelott@rctcbc.gov.uk


   

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 At the end of 2019/20, the Council announced its commitment to 

providing additional funding in support of youth services to the value of 
£200,000. The purpose of this funding was to provide additional 
capacity for community-based support, including extending youth work 
provision on Friday evenings and weekends, and alternative means of 
engagement in areas where there was no permanent youth centre, for 
example via a mobile youth base (vehicle).  

 
4.2  On 23rd March 2020, a national lockdown was imposed in response to 

the Coronavirus pandemic.  At that time, the Youth Engagement and 
Participation Service suspended all face-to-face work with young 
people and colleagues. This lockdown had a significant impact on the 
plans to review of the key priorities of the service, mainly the priority of 
increasing the community offer available to young people. 

 
4.3 The Coronavirus restrictions required staff to demonstrate personal 

resilience in the practical implementation of emergency contingency 
plans to manage crisis, whilst at the same time predict and plan for the 
longer-term impact on young people. Focusing on service users, the 
team was tasked to assess needs and identify requirements, which 
were then used to reallocate resources and develop contingency plans. 
Their previous engagement in service innovation and their confidence 
to use their expertise and knowledge of the needs of young people 
resulted in a comprehensive youth offer of both targeted and universal 
services to assist young people process and manage the change.  

 
4.4 Maintaining these close working relationships with young people 

throughout the past 29 months has allowed the service to gather the 
views of young people and plan its recovery out of the pandemic in a 
way that meets the emerging needs of the various cohorts.  This 
feedback has informed the service’s plans and subsequent 
developments to ensure it offers a balanced programme that fulfils as 
many of the presenting needs as possible, whilst maximising capacity 
in both targeted and universal interventions.  

 
4.5 More recently, a further £75,000 has been made available to the 

service to support its community engagement efforts, including 
investment in expanding its fleet of mobile youth club vehicles. These 
vehicles have been well-received by young people and are making 
positive impact in terms of engagement and reach of the service.  

 
4.6 The additional core funding (£275,000 in total) has been instrumental 

in transforming the service’s provision into a comprehensive hybrid 
offer over the past two years.  It has added much-needed capacity to 

Page 20



   

the team’s front-line delivery, especially in the community where young 
people have been most adversely affected by restrictions.   

 

5. OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY AREAS DIRECTLY FUNDED 

BY THE ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT 
 
5.1 The implementation of plans to extend the youth work community offer 

was suspended as a result of the introduction of the national lockdown 

and the service focused on establishing a virtual offer to support young 

people. This section provides an update on what the service has done 

already, or is in the process of implementing, to add capacity and 

introduce innovative solutions in response to the needs of young 

people post-pandemic as a result of the additional investment.   

 

5.2 Street-based youth work:  From October 2020, the service entirely re-

focused its community youth offer to deliver street-based youth work 

across the County Borough.  This was in response to the escalation of 

young people’s needs who are seeking a trusted adult/support during 

the pandemic and made possible as a result of the additional youth 

service funding. The service is currently deploying up to four teams 

every evening to the key localities across RCT where young people are 

known to frequent.  This work has been well-received by young people 

and community members.  

 

5.3 Developing community provision:  During the street-based sessions, 

staff have started to establish new relationships with local businesses 

to consider what they are able to offer young people in their own area.  

For example, in Treorchy, a supermarket has offered YEPS the use of 

a parcel of land for free to develop as a safe outdoor space for young 

people to congregate and for the service to host outdoor activities, 

such as street dance.   

 

5.4 Mobile youth club vehicles:  The Council has invested in three 

vehicles utilising core and grant funding to act as hubs in localities 

where access to a suitable permanent venue is not available. The 

vehicles are used as mobile youth clubs; as the base for community 

activities like fun days and street-based youth work; as well as a hub 

for use at times when an immediate response is required within a 

community, such as following a serious incident that requires enhanced 

youth work support. The mobile vehicles proved invaluable during the 

pandemic, offering a safe space for young people and support for the 

street based work. A fourth vehicle has recently been purchased and in 

line with the priorities of the new Cabinet, the ongoing expansion of the 

community street based youth work supported by the YEPS vehicles 

will remain a priority in line with available funding opportunities. 

Page 21



   

 

5.5 “RCT Safe Spaces”: The service is establishing a network of 

organisations that support our “Safe Space” initiative. A Safe Space is 

a youth-focused location that provides an open access space for young 

people within their local community.  Every Safe Space will be different 

depending on the community it is based in. A Safe Space may be a 

youth club, community centre, park, sports club, or business like a café 

or activity centre. The Safe Spaces Network will provide support to 

individual organisations by offering advice, guidance and training 

opportunities to provide an inclusive and safe location that young 

people can benefit from.  YEPS will provide their own Safe Spaces as 

well as support wider local authority service areas, third sector 

organisations and private businesses to develop additional Safe 

Spaces across the County Borough. 

 

5.6 Workforce development: Reviewing the levels of engagement and 
reporting rising levels of needs, the service has invested in the 
development of future qualified and competent youth workers, ensuring 
a sustainable workforce into the future. Facing a national shortage of 
youth workers, the Council has dedicated resources to developing its 
own talent at a local level. The service has made a firm commitment to 
the upskilling of the youth workforce across RCT, not only for Council 
employed youth workers but for those working in our partner 
organisations, such as third sector and housing partners and 
community members. Delivering youth work qualifications at Level 2 
and Level 3, this commitment is not only benefiting community 
members and organisations but most importantly the young people 
they will be supporting.   

 
5.7 Apprentices: In January 2021, the service appointed two youth work 

apprentices.  Throughout their two-year contract, they will work in all 
areas of the service and gain Level 2 and 3 qualifications in Youth and 
Community Work.  It is hoped that they will further their career within 
RCT either by securing a post within YEPS or a partner agency within a 
youth support role.  

 

6. SUMMARY OF THE ADDITIONAL PROVISION OFFERED BY THE 

YOUTH ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE 
 

6.1 The wider work of the Youth Engagement and Participation Service 

has indirectly benefited from the additional investment. This section 

provides an update the wider youth work offer of the service delivers 

across the County Borough. For further detail on service delivery during 

the pandemic, please see Cabinet Report MTSP One4aLL LG 

(moderngov.co.uk).   

 

Page 22

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s26023/Agenda%20Item%207%20-%20YEPS%20Update.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s26023/Agenda%20Item%207%20-%20YEPS%20Update.pdf?LLL=0


   

6.2 Referral work:  The service’s core work continues to be its referral 

work, supporting identified young people on a 1:1 basis.  This includes 

meetings in school, college, home or community setting (including the 

mobile youth vehicle), as well as via text messages, WhatsApp, 

telephone and Zoom calls. Referrals rates are currently at an all time 

high with an average of over 100 new referrals per month. 

 

6.3 Mental health and wellbeing support:  Mental Health and Wellbeing 

Officers work directly with young people who are referred to the service 

for support to improve their mental health where they don’t reach the 

threshold for other services, like CAMHS.  The staff employed within 

this team are qualified youth workers who have received enhanced 

training to be able to assist young people with their specific wellbeing 

needs.  

  

6.4 School-based support: Youth workers are based at each secondary 

school across RCT on a daily basis during term time.  Their usual 

duties to support learners include offering support on a 1:1 basis to 

build resilience (referral work); group work where a common need or 

issue is identified, such as managing anxiety about returning to school 

and behaviour concerns; and targeted work for young people impacted 

by family events or incidents in the community such as suicide; etc. 

 

6.5 After-school sessions: Youth workers deliver sessions after the 

school day, on school sites, to provide opportunities for young people 

to participate in fun activities within their own time and free of charge.   

 

6.6 Holiday provision:  In addition to the term time provision, YEPS offers 

a comprehensive holiday programme, except for the Christmas break.  

These programmes include sporting, leisure and cultural activities, chill 

out rooms, workshops and arranged trips. Many of the activities are 

delivered within the community, in parks, skateparks, and town centres, 

utilising the community assets across RCT.  The mobile youth clubs 

feature heavily in the delivery of these sessions, offering a base for the 

activities with a power supply, lighting and shelter in the event of 

adverse weather. These vehicles have broadened the offer that the 

service is able to offer at a local level.  

 

6.7 Youth clubs: Youth clubs are currently in the process of re-opening 

following the pandemic. The delivery of youth club provision from both 

fixed centres and mobile vehicles is providing greater opportunity to 

engage with a wider range of young people. 

 
6.8 Enhanced education, employment and training programme: Year 

11 leavers were significantly affected by Coronavirus, with many 

Page 23



   

leaving school without a destination or clear progression plan for their 

future.  YEPS, with input from schools, Careers Wales and the Gatsby 

Project, have developed an enhanced support programme for those at 

risk of becoming NEET. Interventions include in-person and virtual 

support sessions; coffee mornings; volunteering experience days; in- 

employment days, including CV writing skills, interview techniques; and 

developing the basic skills of those young people in work to ensure 

they continue to be employable in the post-Covid world. 

 

6.9 Tackling youth homelessness:  Preventing youth homelessness 

continues to be a priority and the service continues to develop its 

universal interventions to reduce the risk of homelessness as well as 

delivering targeted specialist support; training to prepare for 

independent living; and family interventions to improve relationships 

that allow the young person to remain within the family home.   

 

6.10 Virtual youth offer:  The service has maintained an element of virtual 

delivery post lockdown offering information, advice and guidance, as 

well as universal activities for young people via the website 

(www.yeps.wales - formally www.wicid.tv) and social media platforms 

(Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube) with contributions from 

delivery partners including sexual health teams, substance misuse 

organisations, and commissioned providers. The new YEPS website is 

supported by a downloadable YEPS app.  

 

6.11 Youth Fora: one of the fundamental priorities of YEPS is to proactively 

consult with and support the active participation of young people, and 

this continued throughout the pandemic. The locality youth fora have 

been revised from geographically based groups to ones that focus on 

key thematic areas, as chosen by the young people themselves.  

These community fora include: 

 

• Environment 

• Community Safety 

• Mental Health and Wellbeing 

• Equality and Inclusion 
 

Representatives on these groups include those working with YEPS, 
third sector organisations and schools. They will also form part of 
RCT’s County Youth Forum, as the main group for ensuring that the 
voice of as many young people in RCT can be collated and shared with 
relevant partners and decision makers. 

 
 
 
 

Page 24

http://www.yeps.wales/
http://www.wicid.tv/


   

7. PERFORMANCE DATA FOR 2021/22 

 
7.1     Over the course of the last financial year, 2021/22, the service has 

provided targeted support to: 
 

• 1,666 individual young people on a 1:1 basis through its referral 
work, which includes 1,346 new referrals accepted during the year.  
The number of referred open cases peaked at 512 cases in May 
2021, of which 175 were new referrals. 

 
7.2     In addition to this, the service has provided open access opportunities 

to young people to the level of: 
 

• 450 activity programmes for young people to take part in during 
term time, totalling 2,994 individual sessions;  

• 250 activities during the holiday periods, totalling 343 individual 
sessions; 

• 6,112 individual young people attended these sessions over the 
year, who attended 39,514 times in total. 

 
7.3     Furthermore, the service undertook 355 street-based sessions during 

2021/22 and during those sessions, staff made 12,930 contacts with 
young people on the streets of RCT. 

 

8. SERVICE PRIORITIES FOR 2022-23 
 
8.1 The work of the service over the coming 12 months will be centred 

around six key priorities 

• Provide a visible, accessible, and inclusive youth provision in 
RCT; 

• Ensure high-quality youth work provision in RCT; 

• Support youth workers to provide the best and most suitable 
support for young people in RCT; 

• Increase and improve the available support for young people 
aged 16-25 in RCT; 

• Continue to enhance the mental health and wellbeing support 
for young people in RCT;  

• Develop sustainable partnerships with all key agencies in RCT 
to offer a co-ordinated approach to issues facing young people; 

 
8.2 In addition to these priorities, as part of the wider Community 

Wellbeing and Resilience Service YEPS is working with the specialist 
Autism training and consultancy Autside Education to review its current 
activities and practices considering accessibility and inclusivity for 
children, young people and adults who are neuro divergent to remove 
barriers to participation and improve professional practice. 

 

Page 25



   

9. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC 

DUTY 

 
9.1 An Equality and Impact Assessment is not required as the contents of 

this report are for information purposes only. 

 

10. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 There are no Welsh Language implications as the contents of this 

report are for information purposes only 
 

11. CONSULTATION  / INVOLVEMENT 

 
11.1 All work of the service is based upon consultation responses from 

young people, contributions from our internal youth workers and 
feedback from key delivery partners, such as Children’s Services, 
Health, Education and the third sector, as a result of their own work 
with young people across RCT.  

 

12. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
12.1 The Youth Engagement and Participation Service utilises both core 

funding and grant funding to deliver a comprehensive and responsive 
youth work offer across RCT. The additional financial investment 
provided since 2020 has allowed specific service improvements to be 
implemented, which may not have been possible otherwise, including 
the purchase and operation of mobile youth club vehicles alongside the 
use of grant funding. 

 

13. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
13.1 There are no legal implications that need to be considered concerning 

the report.  

 

14. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND 

THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
14.1 The appropriate provision for young people aged 11 – 25 years across 

Rhondda Cynon Taf will make a positive contribution towards the 
Council’s Corporate Plan vision of ‘a County Borough that has high 
aspirations, is confident and promotes opportunity for all”, as it will 
deliver against the specific priorities of ‘People - Promoting 
independence and positive lives for everyone and ‘Place - Creating 
neighbourhoods where people are proud to live and work’.  

 
14.2 Young people are a key cohort of our community as they are the next 

generation of Rhondda Cynon Taf.  As such, they are a priority group 
under The Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  It is 

Page 26



   

felt that this report, the survey findings and the subsequent 
developments that are occurring as a result, will contribute to all of the 
seven elements that the Act is aiming to achieve:  
 
1. A prosperous Wales; 
2. A resilient Wales; 
3. A more equal Wales; 
4. A healthier Wales; 
5. A Wales of cohesive communities; 
6. A Wales of vibrant culture and Welsh language; 
7. A globally responsible Wales. 

 

15. CONCLUSION 
 
15.1 The Service has, and continues to demonstrate, its ability to anticipate 

and mitigate the immediate, mid-term and longer term impact of Covid-
19 on young people across the County Borough and to adapt service 
provision accordingly. 

 
15.2 Despite the challenges of the past two years, the Youth Engagement 

and Participation has continued to develop youth work provision in a 
timely manner to respond to the existing and emerging needs of young 
people, facilitated by the additional Council investment it has received.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 27



   

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972  

 

AS AMENDED BY 

 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

15th SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN’S 

SERVICES 

 

 

YOUTH ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE: 

OVERVIEW OF ADDITIONAL FUNDING 2020 - 2022 

 

 

Background Papers 

 
None 

 

 

Officer to contact: 

 
Zoe Lancelott, Head of Community Wellbeing and Resilience  

 

 

 

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2022-23 AND TERMS OF REFERENCE
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	4 YOUTH ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE: OVERVIEW OF ADDITIONAL FUNDING 2020 - 2022

